
DECC BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Senator Sam Solon Board Room  

Wednesday, June 30, 2021 11:30 AM to 1:00 PM 

 
 

 
I. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA (agenda, minutes, and finance statements) 
 
II. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR REPORT 
 
Operational Highlights 
 
III. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
 

A. Executive 
1. Update 

B. Finance 
1. Update 

C. Governance 
1. Update 

D. Personnel 
1. Update 

E. Strategic Planning 
1. Update 

 
IV. OLD BUSINESS 
 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 
 

A. Purchasing Policy & Procedures – update 
 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 
 
IX. UPCOMING MEETINGS 
The Board & Staff retreat is scheduled for October 11th and 12th at Minnesuing Acres. 
The next regular business meeting is scheduled for Wednesday, October, 27th at 11:30 AM. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

BOARD PACKET 
 
SEPTEMBER 2021 
 

- MINUTES 
- FINANCE STATEMENTS 
- PURCHASING POLICY & 

PROCEDURES “UPDATE” 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

DULUTH ENTERTAINMENT AND CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

  August 25, 2021       
       

                                                                                                                                    

A Regular Board Meeting was held Wednesday, August 25th, 2021 in the Harbor Side 
Ballroom. 
 
Board Members Present: 

Chair Pat Mullen 
Vice Chair Lynne Williams 
Secretary Mary Finnegan 
Peter Singler 
Bill Nelson 
Martha Bremer 
Don Ness 
Jason Vincent 

 
Board Members Absent:  

Carrie Heffernan 
 Matt Baumgartner 

Peter Singler 
Laura Mullen 
Steve Hanke 

 
DECC Staff Present: 

Dan Hartman 
Lauren Schuette 
Caty Kaups 

 
Others Present: 

Member of the Public 
Media 

 
Chair Mullen called the meeting to order at 11.35 AM. A quorum of directors was present. 
 
Approval of Consent Agenda 
Finnegan made a motion to approve the consent agenda, which included the meeting 
agenda, meeting minutes from the regular meeting on July 28, 20212 and the July 2021 
Finance Report. It was seconded. The consent agenda was approved unanimously. 
 



 
Executive Director Report 
Operational Highlights:  

1. An overview of the schedule of events was provided to the Board. 

2. Some events are returning to a sense of normalcy, a lot more activity than last 

year. 

3. Bayfront has been popular with events all summer. 

4. First event at Harbor Drive with the Greater Downtown Council was a success, 

great way to highlight the new outdoor space. 

5. Updates provided on social media reach and the effect of recent marketing. 

6. Parking rate is planned to move to $10 in September. 

7. New DECC staff nametags presented. 

8. Update on beverage options. 

9. Working towards getting staff hired for Catering and Concession Stands to. 

10. Budget forecasting presented in regards to the Delta variant. 

11. Update on the staff organization chart, discussion of the reorganization and various 

positions. 

12. Working towards being the “cool” place for long term success. 

13. Data dashboard: Review of events, revenue and marketing successes. 

14. Dan plans to travel to other convention centers and learn from other operations, 

invitation to join. Top 3 things to observe: 

a. How do arenas display sponsorships? 

b. What is the food you’re excited to try? 

c. What does navigation look like? 

 
 
 
Committee Reports 
Executive:  

- Discussion about the retreat and the strategic plan. The goal is to ensure important 

work is done at the retreat. 

 
Finance:  

- The financial report was reviewed. Caty provided more details. 

 
Governance:  

- Creating governance training for the board and finalizing the strategic plan. 

 
Personnel:  

- No updates to report. 

 
Strategic Planning:  

- Drafted strategic plan will be reviewed again prior to the annual board 

meeting/retreat where the plan will be brought to the full board. 



 
Old Business 
No old business. 
 
New Business 

- Introduction of request to update the bid amount threshold for purchases to 

$20,000 and adjust with inflation each year. It was agreed to implement a 

temporary threshold of $5,000 while the board reviews. Anything over $5,000 

needs 3 bids and an approval by Pat Mullen in the interim. The bylaws state the 

board needs to review and approve new purchasing policies; additional members 

agreed with the motion. 

 

 
 
Adjournment 
Chair Mullen requested a motion to adjourn. The meeting adjourned at 1:15 PM.  
 
Upcoming Meetings 
The next regular meeting will be held September 29, 2021 at 11:30 AM. Location to be 
determined. 
 
Minutes reported by Lauren Schuette, Administrative Manager. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 



 



 
 
 
 
 



 



 



PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURE 
 

DULUTH ENTERTAINMENT AND CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY 
 

DULUTH, MN 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
UPDATED and BOARD APPROVED on xx/xx/xxxx  
  



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
 
INTRODUCTION……………..………………………………………..…….….3 
AUTHORIZATION TO PURCHASE…………………..…..……….……….…3 
PURCHASE ORDER REQUIREMENTS……………..…….………………….4 
PURCHASING PROCEDURE…………………………………..……………...5  
 
 
APPENDIX A:  EMPLOYEE CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY…………..7 
APPENDIX B:  PURCHASING EXCEPTION REPORT………………………8 
APPENDIX C: TAX EXEMPTION MEMO…………………………………….9 
  



I. INTRODUCTION 
 
A. This document describes the purchasing policies and procedures of the Duluth 

Entertainment and Convention Center Authority, herein referred to as the DECC.   
 
B. These policies have been designed to ensure that all relevant local, state, and 

regulatory laws and requirements are followed. 
 
C. All personnel are required to follow these policies so that the DECC’s budgeted 

funds are maximized and expenditures properly authorized. 
 
 
 

II. AUTHORIZATION TO PURCHASE 
 
A. Department managers are authorized to purchase items under $20,000 after 

receiving written authorization on a properly completed Purchase Order.  See 
Section IV. A. for the prescribed procedures. 

 
B. All authorized purchasers are required to sign a DECC Employee Conflict of Interest 

Acknowledgement when hired/promoted.  See Appendix A. 
 
C. DECC Finance Board Chair approves all purchases estimated to exceed $100,000. 
 
D. Purchases or services over $20,000 must be put out to bid.  The formal advertising 

bid process is used to procure and select the vendor or supplier on purchases over 
$100,000.  See Section III. D. for prescribed bidding requirements. 

  



III. PURCHASE ORDER REQUIREMENTS 
 

A. Purchases under $500 
Items or services costing less than $500 may be purchased by authorized personnel 
without prior written approval of the Executive or Finance Director. 

 
B. Purchases from $500 to $999 

Items or services costing $500 to $999 must have a completed purchase order with 
Finance Director (or Executive Director) approval prior to placing the order. 

 
C. Purchases over $1,000 but less than $100,000 

• Items or services costing $1,000 to $99,999 must have a completed purchase order 
including signature of both the Executive Director and Finance Director prior to 
placing the order. 

• Purchases over $20,000 must be put out to bid and include quotes from at least 
three suppliers documented or attached to the purchase order.  If vendors do not 
reply, proof of bid request should be attached. 

 
D. Purchases $100,000 and over 

1. If the purchase is $100,000 or greater, the DECC Finance Committee Chair must 
approve the purchase prior to placing the order.   

2. Goods or services costing $100,000 and over must be chosen using a formal bid 
process, including: 

• Formal bid document approved by the Executive Director. 

• Public Notice placed in the Duluth News Tribune or other approved legal 
newspaper for at least 2 days, 14 days prior to the last day of bid submission. 

• Receipt of Affidavit of advertisement in permanent bid file. 

• Public opening of bids at stated date and time. 

• Evidence of performance and payment bonds. 

• Approval by DECC Finance Committee Chair or by full DECC Board if 
requested by the Finance Committee Chair or Executive Director. 

3. Purchases over $100,000 and over may be exempt from the formal bid process if 
they meet the following definitions: 

• Purchases from other governmental bodies such as the City of Duluth or State 
of Minnesota. 

• Contractual or professional services whereas the product desired is of a 
unique nature and competitive bidding is not reasonably possible. 

• Purchases of damages, distressed, or salvaged merchandise obtained at 
substantial discount from market prices. 

• Evidence suggests that normal bidding procedures are not attaining fair, 
competitive or acceptable bids. 
 



IV. PURCHASING PROCEDURE 
 
A. Purchase Order Preparation  

1. Procedure 
a.  Department Manager completes a purchase order including: 

• Complete vendor name and address 

• Description of goods or services (and location if specific) 

• Quantity and Price by line item  

• Shipping if applicable 

• All quotes received (or proof that quotes were requested if not all replied) 
b. Finance Director or Executive Director approval. 

 
2. Sole Source Suppliers 

a. If only one supplier provides a product or service, additional quotes are not 
required.  This would be the case for equipment and dispensers, which 
require brand specific replacements or parts. 

b. Write on the purchase order in the Quote section “Sole Supplier” and provide 
a description of why the vendor is the only practical or reasonable source.  

 
3. Blanket Purchase Order 

a. Blanket purchase orders can be utilized for purchases made on a regular basis 
such as advertising, expo supplies, and hourly repair rates.  

b. Follow the same procedure for receiving and documenting quotes to prepare 
the purchase order.  Obtain proper approvals. 

c. Blanket purchase orders expire one year from the date of the purchase order. 
d. Price limits may be described as “Not to exceed” a prescribed amount. 
e. Price variance on approved invoices is limited to 5% of the extended price.  If 

the variance is greater than 5%, the purchaser must prepare a new blanket 
purchase order for the goods or service.  
 

4. Emergency Purchases 
An emergency situation requiring unscheduled expenditures without prior 
quotes and approval must be documented on a purchase order form and signed 
by the Executive Director and/or Finance Director. 
 

5. Exemption from Purchase Order Preparation 
No purchase order is needed for the following payments: 

• Administrative expenses and payments including organization dues, legal 
costs, audit fee and financing payments. 

• Food and beverage purchases, serving supplies, gift shop merchandise, 
cleaning supplies and paper products purchases. 

 



B. Purchase Order Approval is Required Prior to Placing the Order 
1. Purchases costing between $500 and $1,000 require either Finance Director or 

Executive Director approval. 
2. Purchases over $1,000 require Finance Director and Executive Director approval.  

When possible, Finance Director should approve first. 
3. Purchases over $20,000 must include 3 bids or proof of bid request. 
4. Purchases over $100,000 requires approval by the DECC Finance Committee 

Chair. 
 
C. Placing Order and Receipt of Goods 
1. Department Manager places the order, requesting vendor to reference the 

purchase order number on the invoice and billing documents. 
2. Vendor should be informed of our city and county tax exempt status.  Note: we 

still pay state sales tax.  Tax Exemption memo is attached (page 10).  Accounting 
can also provide documentation to vendor if requested. 

3. The ordering party is required to inspect, approve and sign for purchased goods 
or services upon receipt and acceptance. 

 
D. Payment Authorization 
1. The authorized employee, for the accepted and approved goods or services, must 

sign and code with department expense account number all invoices and send to 
Accounts Payable. 

2. The invoice must reference the approved purchase order and match quantities, 
items and prices on the approved purchase order.  Exceptions must be noted on 
the invoice. 

3. Approved purchases not requiring a purchase order must be signed by the 
authorized employee and documented with the department expense code.   

4. Invoices should be turned in to Accounting in a timely manner.  All purchases 
received during the month must be submitted within two weeks of the end of the 
month. 

5. Price variance on approved invoices is limited to 5% of the extended price.  If the 
variance is greater, the purchaser must verify acceptance of higher price and 
explain on the purchase order.   

6. For all received purchases which are not acceptable, the authorized department 
employee is responsible for notifying the vendor and following up on required 
corrective action.  If appropriate, indicate an invoice is “ON HOLD” to ensure 
payment is not made on disputed billings. 

 
E. Purchases Made Without Authorization 
All invoices over $500 which do not have a prior approved purchase order will be 
rejected for payment until the department manager provides a Purchasing Exception 
Report signed by the Finance Director.  (See Appendix B) 

 



 
 

Appendix A 
 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY 
 
 
The Duluth Entertainment and Convention Center Authority Board (“the Board”) 
recognizes that a conflict of interest can arise for any of its employees when 
participating in a decision in which they have a personal financial interest or from 
which they may benefit financially.  In addition, the Board recognizes the importance of 
maintaining the confidence of the public by avoiding even the appearance of a financial 
conflict of interest. 
 

1. Employees shall take only those actions and authorize only those purchases and 
contracts which are in the best interest of the DECC. 

 
2. No employee shall represent any individual or organization seeking to contract 

with the DECC or third party seeking to contract with the DECC. 
 
3. No employee shall participate in any DECC decision in which he or she has a 

personal financial interest. 
 
4. No employee shall represent any individual or organization in which the 

employee owns an interest other than an immaterial interest or which he or she 
is an officer or director which seeks to contract with the DECC. 

 
5. No employee shall accept gifts or special favors offered to them or to any 

member of their families if the gifts are given or may be viewed as given with the 
expectation of receiving more favorable treatment at the DECC.  If there is any 
question as to whether there may be the appearance of a conflict, the employee 
shall review the matter with the Executive Director. 

 
6. Whenever a question or dispute as to whether a financial conflict of interest 

exists for an employee, the Executive Director and Board Chair shall take 
appropriate action.  Employees are obligated and directed to notify the Executive 
Director of any real and potential conflicts of interest. 

 
Violations of these policies will be grounds for disciplinary action, including immediate 
dismissal.  
  



DECC EMPLOYEE CONFLICT OF INTEREST 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

 
 
 
 
As a Department Head and/or Authorized Purchaser for the Duluth Entertainment 
Convention Center, I realize the importance of maintaining independence in fact and 
independence in appearance for all purchases I make on behalf of the DECC in the 
performance of my duties. 
 
Therefore, I am aware of the attached Employee Conflict of Interest Policy and intend to 
be bound by the conditions as stated in the policy. 
 
 
 
Department: ____________________________________ 
 
 
Printed Name: ___________________________________ 
 
 
Signed: ________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 



Appendix B 
 

PURCHASING EXCEPTION REPORT 
 
 
DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: Accounting 

RE:   Missing Purchase Order 

 
 
The attached invoice for over $500 was made without a prior approved purchase order.  
Please respond with one of the following: 
 
 

1) Attach a copy of the purchase order 

2) Explain circumstances if P.O. was not prepared 

3) Route to purchaser responsible for this invoice 

 
 
Comments: 
 
 
 
 
 
Signed: ________________________________________ 
 
 
Date: __________________________________________ 
 
 
 
Please return invoice with completed purchase order to Finance Director.  Payment will 
be held until P.O. and Purchasing Exception Report have been approved. 
 
 
 
Approved: _______________________________________ 
 



 
 
 

Memorandum 

To:  

CC:  

From: Caty Kaups, Finance Director 

Date:  

Re: City and County Sales Tax Exemption 

 

Dear Vendor, 

Please be advised that the Duluth Entertainment Convention Center (DECC) is a local 

government unit and is exempt from City and County sales tax; however, as a state 

authority we are not eligible for state tax exemption so Minnesota state sales tax applies.   

Our city and county tax exemption number is 202350-00.  Local government units do not 

pay local sales tax and NO EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE IS NECESSARY.  If you have 

any questions, please call me at (218) 623-1226.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 


	PURCHASING POLICY AND PROCEDURE
	DULUTH ENTERTAINMENT AND CONVENTION CENTER AUTHORITY

	TABLE OF CONTENTS
	I. INTRODUCTION
	II. AUTHORIZATION TO PURCHASE
	III. PURCHASE ORDER REQUIREMENTS
	A. Purchases under $500
	B. Purchases from $500 to $999
	C. Purchases over $1,000 but less than $100,000
	D. Purchases $100,000 and over
	IV. PURCHASING PROCEDURE
	B. Purchase Order Approval is Required Prior to Placing the Order
	C. Placing Order and Receipt of Goods
	D. Payment Authorization
	E. Purchases Made Without Authorization


	PURCHASING EXCEPTION REPORT

